
                  AGENDA FOR  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Closed Session starting at 6:00 p.m. 

Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, June 12, 2017 

 

Posted by 5:00 p.m., June 9, 2017 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Executive Session pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports  
d. Request from the YMCA to use city streets for their 3rd annual Color Fun Run on Saturday, July 15. 

5. Presentation of Bills and Claims 

6. Citizen Participation 

7. Business: 

a. Presentation from Economic Development Resources regarding options for creating a business 
district and other economic development options. 

b. Consideration of a Resolution designating Speer Financial Inc. as a financial advisor for the City of 
Kewanee and authorizing the City Manager to execute engagement letters in accordance with the City’s 
Procurement Policy. 

c. Consideration of an Ordinance establishing the prevailing rate of wages for Laborers, Workmen and 
Mechanics employed on Public Works for the City of Kewanee. 

d. Consideration of a Resolution to authorize the temporary closure of Second & Main Streets, US Route 
34 and State Hwy 78 for the annual Hog Days Parade. 
 
 

8. Council Communications: 
 

9. Announcements:  
 

10. Adjournment 

 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 9, 2017 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, June 12, 2017 
 
CLOSED MEETING AT 6:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. Enterprise Zone – DCEO staff will have Enterprise Zone Applications scored by June 

30th and forwarded to the Enterprise Zone Board in advance of their public meetings  that 
are scheduled for July 12th (Chicago), August 2nd (Springfield), September 6th 
(Springfield), and September 21st (Chicago).   
 

2. City-wide cleanup – We are still working out some bugs with the City-wide cleanup, but 
the event was a success by most accounts.  In total, we collected more than 103,000 
pounds of junk and debris, which will go a long way towards improving the appearance 
of the community and the ability of our residents to better utilize their property.  The 
overlwhelming majority of participants were grateful for the opportuntity to get rid of a 
few items.  Scrap metal from the event generated $895, which helps to defray the costs.       

 
3. RFPs – The City advertised for proposals for both a housing study and financial advisor 

services.  The financial advisor services is on the agenda for this meeting.  The 
recommendation regarding the housing study has been delayed so that the responses can 
be more thoroughly reviewed.   
 

4. Golf Cart Ordinance – In February, the City Council opted not to consider an 
amendment allowing for the use of Golf Carts on City streets.  A petition has been 
drafted and signed by 145 people asking that the City of Kewanee allow the use of non-
licensed four-wheel motorized vehicles (ATVs, UTVs, golf carts) for individuals with 
valid Illinois Drivers Licenses ages 16 and above with proof of insurance.  Such vehicles 
would be required to follow the rules of the road, including the use of hand signals, 
would require a registration process at the municipal level and limit the travel of such 
vehicle to no more than 10 miles per hour.  Staff would like your guidance on whether or 
not the City Council would like to consider the petition.    

 
5. Street Improvement Risers -  One of the items in the bills for this Council meeting was 

to American Highway Products, Ltd.  Staff ordered the risers to install on the manholes 
and inlets affected by last year’s street improvements.  Risers have been installed on 
West First Street by the alley and Central Blvd. by St. John Paul II Catholic Church.  
Staff is working to install the remaining risers, which are planned for installation along 
West Central Blvd., West McClure St., and possibly Lake Street; as well as an inlet riser 



 
 

at 1116 West Prospect Street in front of the driveway, and will install additional risers in 
the future while the street improvements are being made. 
   

6. Lunch & Learn – The Chamber of Commerce has hosted two Lunch & Learn sessions 
for our businesses (a third was cancelled due to lack of participants signed up).  They will 
host the final Lunch & Learn event on Tuesday, June 20 from 11:45 a.m. to 1:30 p.m.  at 
the Flemish American Club.  The topic of that session will be the City of Kewanee’s 
incentive programs.   

 
7. Demolitions – Keith posted notices yesterday for five structures to go through the fast 

track demolition process.  The five structures include 2 houses and 3 garages. The houses 
are 511 W Fifth Street and 522 E Seventh Street.  The garages are located at 802 Rose 
Street (garage near the Shamrock), 315 Elliott Street, and 521 Cambridge Road (garage 
just off of 6th street on the way to Baker Park) . 
 

8. Depot – I received complaints Thursday regarding inappropriate use of the facility and 
some maintenance issues that need to be addressed.  Kevin Newton is working on the 
maintenance issues and was addressing them even before the concerns were raised to my 
attention.  The police have had contact with the individuals who were using the facility 
inappropriately, and were called by a private business on South Tenney today to ask one 
of the individuals to leave their facility.   
 

9. Façade Program – We received an application from the owner of 116 W. 2nd Street for 
the façade improvement program.  The building is adjacent to the one that just had the 
front replaced.  It’s a small application from a financial standpoint, but improvements to 
multiple buildings in the same block could serve as a catalyst for other improvements and 
investment in the area.  
 

11. Infrastructure – Staff installed 3 new main line valves on Cambridge Road for the 
Golden Avenue water project.  The City has requested bids for emergency sewer lining 
on Burlington Avenue & Payson Street, and staff has worked to restore rights-of-way from 
sewer repairs.  Staff also repaired a major hole on the south part of Red Adams Road.  The 
City’s camera truck has arrived and staff will begin training on the equipment next week.   

 
12. Street Maintenance – All of the paperwork for this year’s approved street program has 

been sent to IDOT.  We are awaiting their approval and scheduling for bid letting. 
 

13. Chlorides  – Our final chloride report was completed and submitted to the IEPA last 
month.  Dale and a representative from CMT met with the IEPA officials in Springfield 
and presented the report.  We have not received any feedback from the report, at this time. 

 
14. Storm Drainage Improvements  – The Oak/Park/Prospect Streets storm drainage project 

will be starting Monday. 
 
15. Well #4 Rehab – The Variable Frequency Drive (VFD, Speed Control) is here and ready 

for installation.  The new pump is at Peerless Pump along with the column piping. The 
epoxy coating is being applied to the piping.  At this time, the plan is to have these items 



 
 

installed within the next three weeks. The IEPA is requiring a permit for the well work.  
CMT has been retained to prepare and submit the required paperwork, by the end of this 
week. 

 
16. Sanitary Sewer CIPP  – Work continues on the replacement of sewer laterals via the 

CIPP process.  It is not going as fast as anticipated, but it is steadily moving forward. 
 

17. Downtown Electrical Work  – Staff has been working with Kenny Gutschlag, CMT and 
Ameren to develop a plan to provide for the future metering of electricity in the Downtown 
area for Hog Days and other Downtown Events.  With the assistance of CMT, a schematic 
design has been created for a metered single load center next to Berrian Park, using 
existing poles to provide metered power along the streets that are used for events in the 
area.  There are still details to be worked out about the timing of the improvements and 
developing the bid specifications for the actual work.   

 
 
 
 

 



 1 

COUNCIL MEETING 17-10 

MAY 22, 2017 

 
The City Council met in Council Chambers at 6:33 PM with the Mayor calling the meeting to order and 

the following answering to roll call: 

   

  Andy Koehler  Council Member 

  Deann Schweitzer  Council Member 

  Mike Yaklich  Council Member 

  Steve Faber  Council Member 

  Steve Looney  Mayor  

 

Council Member Koehler made a motion at 6:33 PM to adjourn to executive session pursuant to Section 

2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel and Section 2(c)(2) to discuss collective bargaining.  

Council Member Yaklich seconded the motion.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

The executive session was adjourned at 6:58 PM on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and 

seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

The Council Meeting resumed at 7:01 PM with Mayor Looney announcing that Council was reconvening 

following a closed session pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel and 

Section 2(c)(2) to discuss collective bargaining. 

 

News media present was as follows: 

 

  Margie Washburn    Star Courier 

              

The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 

 

Mayor Looney asked for a moment of silence for our troops still fighting overseas.   

 

Mayor Looney explained that the next items were placed on the consent agenda and were considered to be 

routine in nature to be passed as a whole with one vote of the Council. Mayor Looney requested that any 

member of the Council or the audience wishing to have an item removed from the consent agenda for 

individual consideration to make the request and the item would be removed and considered following the 

approval of the remaining consent items.  The consent agenda included minutes from the May 8, 2017 

Council Meeting and payroll for the pay period ending May 13, 2017 and police Clothing allowances in the 

amount of $258,086.03.  The consent agenda was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich 

and seconded by Council Member Koehler.  Roll call showed 4 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Bills submitted for approval totaling $438,192.60 were approved on a motion made by Council Member 

Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Koehler.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed.   

 

 

 

 

 



 2 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Mayor Looney opened a public hearing on the Appropriations Ordinance for the municipal fiscal year from 

May 1, 2017 through April 30, 2018 at 7:04 PM.  City Manager Bradley explained the appropriation 

ordinance was a statutory requirement.  The City would continue to use the previously passed budget  and 

the procurement policy to guide spending.  Mayor Looney asked if anyone from the Council or audience 

had any comments.  There being no other comments, the public hearing was closed at 7:05 PM. 

 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 

Mayor Looney asked if anyone wished to speak.  There being no such requests Mayor Looney moved on to 

new business.   

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Kathy Albert from the Kewanee Economic Development Corporation presented her semi-annual update 

regarding their activities and meetings. 

 

The minutes from the Zoning Board of Appeals from its meeting held on May 17 were accepted on a 

motion made by Council Member Schweitzer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call 

showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Ordinance #3882 granting a variance to Brian and Amanda Forrest for property located at 613 East 

Street South was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council 

Member Schweitzer.  Brian Forrest was present and explained the project to the Council.  Roll call 

showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed.   

 

Resolution #5050 to authorize the use of the public alley and parking area in the 200 block of West 

Second Street by Hype, Inc. d/b/a Cerno’s Bar & Grill for a beer garden in conjunction with events 

known as Concerts in the Alley, Summer Series was approved on a motion made by Council Member 

Koehler and seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  Police Chief Dison confirmed that there had 

been no issues with security with prior events.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Resolution #5051 to authorize the use of the public alley and parking area in the 200 block of West 

Second Street by Hype, Inc. d/b/a Cerno’s Bar & Grill for a beer garden in conjunction with Hog Days, 

September 1, 2, & 3 was approved on a motion made by Council Member Koehler and seconded by 

Council Member Faber.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Ordinance #3883 amending Chapter 155 in regards to trailer definitions was approved on a motion made 

by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no 

nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Ordinance #3884 amending Section 111.19 Issuance of License when certain requirements are met on 

Chapter 111 Alcoholic Liquor to include required BASSET program certification was approved on a 



 3 

motion made by Council Member Schweitzer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call 

showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Ordinance #3881 amending Chapter 150.017(k) of the City Code which establishes climatic and 

geographic design criteria was approved on a motion made by Council Member Schweitzer and 

seconded by Council Member Yaklich.  Community Development Director Edwards explained that the 

ordinance was a making a change to the ice barrier needed for roofing jobs.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no 

nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Ordinance #3882 appropriating funds for the municipal fiscal year from May 1, 2017 through April 30, 

2018 was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member 

Faber.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Resolution #5052 authorizing the City Manager to execute a five year collective bargaining agreement 

with AFSCME Council 31, Local 764 was approved on a motion made by Council Member Faber and 

seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  Council Member Yaklich questioned the length of the 

agreement.  City Manager Bradley explained that the term was mutually agreed upon, and would assist 

the city to align all of the agreements to be negotiated at one time.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  

The motion passed. 

 

Resolution #5053 for maintenance o streets and highways by the City of Kewanee for Fiscal Year 2017-

2018, under the Illinois Highway Code was approved on a motion made by Council Member Schweitzer 

and seconded by Council Member Koehler.  Council Member Schweitzer questioned if we were behind 

in the street department.  City Manager Bradley replied that the city was very behind in street 

maintenance.  City Engineer Nobel stated that there is $8-10 million of work that needs to be done, 

while the city has around $500,000 to spend.  City Manager Bradley also noted that the street crew also 

performs all of the sewer and storm sewer projects done by the City.  City Engineer Nobel also noted 

that this work would be contracted.  Public Works Operations Manager Johnson stated that the city is 

out filling potholes whenever they have the opportunity to do so.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The 

motion passed. 

 

Ordinance #3883 amending Sections 50.09 and 50.10 of Chapter 50 Public Works and Sections 92.06 

Rates and Charges and 92.08 Placement of Headstones Permit Required of Chapter 92 Cemetery in 

regards to corresponding fees was tabled with the request for additional information from the 

comparables on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member 

Schweitzer.  Council Member Faber had made a motion to approve the Ordinance with a second from 

Council Member Yaklich, those motions were withdrawn after some discussion.  The request to see the 

information from the comparables was to ensure the increase in fees would be enough to avoid another 

increase in the near future.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

Resolution #5054 authorizing an agreement to provide janitorial services for Kewanee City Hall and the 

Amtrak Depot was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council 

Member Schweitzer.  Council Member Yaklich noted that the same vendor would continue to do the 

work, and that they had done an okay job in the past.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion 

passed. 

 



 4 

Resolution #5055 declaring certain Police Department items as excess due to pending officer retirements 

was approved on a motion made by Council Member Schweitzer and seconded by Council Member 

Faber.  Council Members all thanked the chief and retiring officers for their service.  Roll call showed 5 

ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

 

City Clerk Edwards read a proclamation declaring May 21-27 as Emergency Medical Services Week. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Council Member Koehler thanked Mike Berry for his coverage of the Council Meetings.  He noted the 

pending retirement of Henry County Sheriff Jim Padilla.  He also note the upcoming Memorial Day 

Services at the American Legion. 

 

Council Member Yaklich noted the rescheduling of the City wide cleanup, due to the eminent threat of 

lightning.  The new date would be June 3 from 8-2 and volunteers were still needed.  He also noted that 

volunteers could park at the Medical Arts Center on Elliott Street. 

 

Council Member Faber noted the cleanup happening around town, including a recent demolition on N 

Main Street.   

 

Council Member Koehler questioned adding additional burn days.  Fire Chief Shook noted that the burn 

days were amended the previous year to include June. 

 

Council Member Schweitzer thanked and congratulated Chief Dison, Sergeant Clapper and Officer 

Underwood.  She also thanked Sheriff Padilla, congratulated area graduates, and noted the upcoming 

Memorial Day service. 

 

Mayor Looney thanked and wished good luck to the upcoming retiring officers.  He also congratulated 

Mike Berry on his retirement and welcomed Margie Washburn.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

City Clerk Edwards read the announcements thanking everyone for their understanding during recent 

construction and repair projects, most notably on 9th Street and Burlington Ave.  Public Works would 

begin their summer hours on Monday, June 5.  Summer hours were from 6 am to 2:30 pm, so all trash or 

other items for collection should be at the curb prior to 6 am. 

 

There being no further business, Council Member Yaklich moved to adjourn the meeting and Council 

Member Schweitzer seconded the motion.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The meeting adjourned at 

8:03 PM. 

 

___________________________________________         ________________________________  

MELINDA EDWARDS, CITY CLERK   DATE APPROVED 



7-Day Page 1

Page 1 of 8

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 

Needed
Yr Number Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No

7460 Posted 112 E Eighth St 5 1 17
Discarded televion in front 
yard. 5/8 Completed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 Posted 410 E Eighth St 5 1 17
Discarded televion in front 
yard.

5/8 Removed from roadside, 
posted notice of requested 
response. 5/22 Complete. N/A N/A No No No

7460 306 Elliott St 5 1 17

Phone wire from this 
address hanging very low 
over the city sidewalk.  

Called Frontier and requested 
they remove the wire from the 
vacant house so that it does 
not become a hazzard to 
children in the neighborhood.  
5/2 Wire removed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 811 Rockwell St 5 2 17
Discarded televion in front 
yard. 5/3 Removed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 310 E Church St 5 4 17
Large amount of grass 
blown into the roadway. 5/5 Completed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 645 Beach St So 5 8 17
Tree/bush overgrown and 
blocking view of stop sign. 5/17 Completed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 Posted 621 E Fifth St 5 8 17

Pile of landscape waste with 
other scrap wood and debris 
located in back yard.

Given flyer for city wide clean 
up day.

7460 101 S Elm St 5 9 17
Large amount of grass 
blown into the roadway. 5/9 Completed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 305 E Eighth St 5 10 17
Fence being build without an 
approved permit.

Advised to come to City Hall 
and apply for fence permit.  
5/17 Dropped off fence permit 
application. 5/30 Fence 
permit applied for and issued. N/A N/A No No Yes

7460 140 Dwight St 5 10 17
Large amount of misc trash 
and junk behind the house.

This is an abandoned house 
managed by Vision Property 
Maintenance.  We started this 
notice in March and have had 
difficulty making contact with 
Vision Property Maintenance.  
On this date, there has finally 
been progress but still has 
more to go.  Called Vision 
Property Maintenance and 
sent photos.  They agreed to 
get someone back out to the 
property to clean it up. 5/22 
Still not done.  Called Vision 
Property Mainenance and 
advised. Yes

7460 Elgin Brian 535 W Sixth St 5 10 17
Large pile of scrap metal 
and other misc junk.

5/18 Complete.  Weed notice 
also issued. N/A N/A No No No

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

Date of 
NTA

Incident 
Number Officer 

#

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ NuisanceLast Name First Name
Mid 
Init

House 
#



7-Day Page 2

Page 2 of 8

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 

Needed
Yr Number Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

Date of 
NTA

Incident 
Number Officer 

#

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ NuisanceLast Name First Name
Mid 
Init

House 
#

7460 Rivera Maria 206 N Burr Blvd 5 11 17

This is a dangerous building 
case. The new owners had 
contacted me and are going 
to rehab the structure.  

On site review of the structure 
on this date.  Discussed their 
options and what needs to be 
done.  They will be applying 
for a building permit and plan 
to start the work as soon as 
their loan is approved. N/A N/A No No Yes

7460 Posted 324 S Cottage St 5 12 17

Large pile of landscape 
waste in back yard along 
with mattresses and other 
misc debris behind the 
house. 5/22 Complete. N/A N/A No No No

7460 Posted 137 W Division St 5 12 17

Trash, discarded furniture, 
television, pallets, 
landscape waste and other 
misc debris on the back 
porch, in the back yard and 
around the sides of the 
house.

5/22 No change.  Mailing to 
property owner on record via 
certified mail. Yes

7460 Puskar John 517 Williams St 5 15 17
Garage in very poor 
condition.

Owner applied for a 
demolition permit on 5/15. N/A N/A No No Yes

7460 Posted 800 Monroe St 5 15 17

This is a follow-up for an 
open court case.  Items still 
to be taken care of are: 
Large pile of brush and 
debris in the back yard.  
Unlicensed/inoperable Ford 
pick-up truck full of trash 
and debris.  IL 41760H exp 
8/16.  Tall weeds.  Trash by 
the South side of the 
garage.

5/22 Cars gone.  Additional 
progress in back yard too. 
5/26 Complete. N/A N/A No No No

7460 Posted 541 Rockwell St 5 18 17

Large pile of landscape 
waste in back yard by the 
alley way.

5/25 Resident requested 
more time to due to work 
schedules and weather. 6/7 
Compete. N/A N/A No No No

7460 Taylor Judith 1335 Rockwell St 5 18 17

Misc trash, junk, mattresses, 
refuse and misc in back yard 
and side yard.  Tires and 
other trash by driveway. 6/7 Complete. N/A N/A No No No

7460 804 Florence St 5 22 17
Blowing grass into the 
roadway.  

Advised to blow off the street 
when done mowing. N/A N/A No No No

7460 1131 Roseview Ave 5 24 17
Blowing grass into the 
roadway.  

Advised to blow off the street 
when done mowing. N/A N/A No No No

7460 140 Tenney St 5 24 17

Discarded furniture and 
other trash and debris 
throughout the property. 5/31 Complete. N/A N/A No No No



7-Day Page 3

Page 3 of 8

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 

Needed
Yr Number Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

Date of 
NTA

Incident 
Number Officer 

#

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ NuisanceLast Name First Name
Mid 
Init

House 
#

7460 Petty Chad 1105 Roseview Ave 5 24 17

Overgrown vegetation, 
concrete blocks, tires, 
numerous bicycles and other 
personal belongings strewn 
throughout the property, 
privacy fence in state of 
disrepair, Red convertible 
passenger vehicle in 
unknown state of operability, 
Chickens and pigs being 
kept upon the property, foul 
odor coming from the 
property.

Property to be re-inspected 
on June 7th. 6/7 Very minimal 
progress.  NTA to be issued. Yes Yes Yes

7460 Giesenhagen George 213 S Chestnut St 5 25 17

Unlicensed/inoperable 
Chevy van, tall grass and 
vegetation, Blue car on 
blocks, misc items all over 
front and side porches, large 
brush pile in back yard, cans 
and litter all over, property in 
need of general clean-up 
efforts.  Also gave 
information about the 
targeted minor home repair 
program and the demo grant 
program for their garage. 6/1 Minor progress. Yes

7460 Costin 304 W Fifth St 5 25 17
DANGEROUS BUILDING: 
House Yes

7460 Costin 517 n Chestnut St 5 25 17
DANGEROUS BUILDING: 
House Yes

7460 Posted 621 E Fifth St 5 25 17

Large pile of landscape 
waste with other misc debris 
and trash in back yard. 6/1 Minor progress. Yes

7460 635 Madison Ave 5 25 17
Blowing grass into the 
roadway.  

Advised to blow off the street 
when done mowing. N/A N/A No No No

7460 802 Rose St 5 25 17
DANGEROUS BUILDING: 
Garage Fast track process started. Yes Yes Yes

7460 315 Elliott St 5 25 17
DANGEROUS BUILDING: 
Garage Fast track process started. Yes Yes Yes

7460 521 Cambridge Rd 5 25 17
DANGEROUS BUILDING: 
Garage Fast track process started. Yes Yes Yes

7460 511 W Fifth St 5 25 17
DANGEROUS BUILDING: 
House Fast track process started. Yes Yes Yes

Spoke to Eugene Costin in 
reference to the two houses 
on Costin's Machine property.  
Offered the Demolition Grant 
program.  Eugene asked me 
to get back to him in two 
weeks as he is going to 
present this to the rest of the 
family members involved with 
the property.



7-Day Page 4

Page 4 of 8

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 

Needed
Yr Number Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

Date of 
NTA

Incident 
Number Officer 

#

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ NuisanceLast Name First Name
Mid 
Init

House 
#

7460 Posted 600 N Lexington Ave 5 26 17

Abandoned passenger 
vehicle, dead trees, brush 
and landscape waste.

7460 Posted 824 Wilson St 5 26 17
Pile of scrap wood, shingles 
and tires. 6/7 Scrap wood gone. Yes

7460 824 Wilson St 5 26 17

Follow-up to a Dangerous 
Building on the property.  
Garage falling over.

Structure demolished and 
removed. N/A N/A No No No

7460 Koehler Andy 130 W Mill St 5 30 17

Vehicles not regularly used 
for transportation stored 
openly:  Large truck behind 
accessory building, blue 
truck, light green truck, red 
and white truck.  Tall weeds 
around vehicles and behind 
garage.



Weeds Page 5

Page 5 of 8

Handed 
In For 

Mowing
Yr Number Yr # Mo Day Yr Mo Day Yr  Yes/No

17 38 7460 Peach Aimee 617 E Fifth St 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 39 7460 Tumbleson Michael 621 E Fifth St 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 40 7460 Gorden Linda 522 S West St 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 41 7460 Bonilla Edgar 312 W Oak St 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 42 7460 Federal National Mortgage Assn 427 E Church St 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 43 7460 Whitcher Adam 918 Zang Ave 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 44 7460 Cerda Agustin 1212 Roseview Ave 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 45 7460 Moran Carolina 610 Elliott St 5 2 17 5 7 17 Mowed No
17 46 7460 White Luann 509 E Eighth St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 48 7460 Project Now 103 N Elm St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 49 7460 Groy Jeanne 811 Pleasantview Ave 5 4 17 5 9 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 50 7460 Rashid Paul 417 W Sixth St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 51 7460 Hogeboom Steven 926 N Tremont St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 52 7460 Scott Juarez Sauer Homes 911 N Main St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 54 7460 Wade Amber 314 E Division St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 55 7460 Shinkevich Ronald 416 E Eighth St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 57 7460 Wallen Peter 701 N Main St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 58 7460 Henry Co As Trustee 219 S Park St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Mowed No
17 59 7460 Moats Harold Sr 805 N Vine St 5 4 17 5 9 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 60 7460 Stone Dustin 812 N Tremont St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Mowed No
17 61 7460 Frantzen James 924 N East St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 62 7460 Schwigen Wendy 614 S West St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 63 7460 Lambert Loren 717 N Vine St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 64 7460 Lambert Loren 721 N Vine St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 65 7460 Witte Tim 522 E Seventh St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 66 7460 Henry Co As Trustee 715 Willow St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 67 7460 Woller Edward 211 W First St 5 9 17 5 14 17 Mowed No
17 68 7460 VerVynck Elisabeth 900 Rockwell St 5 10 17 5 15 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 70 7460 Crowe Gina 614 Willow St 5 10 17 5 15 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 71 7460 Jones Betty 1005 Wilbur St 5 10 17 5 15 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 72 7460 Elgin Connie 535 W Sixth St 5 10 17 5 15 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 73 7460 Elgin Connie 537 W Sixth St 5 10 17 5 15 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 74 7460 Petty Marilyn 121 S Jackson St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 75 7460 Henry Co As Trustee 123 S Jackson St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 76 7460 Holdgrafer Anthony 125 S Jackson St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Mowed No
17 77 7460 Holdgrafer Anthony 109 S Jackson St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Mowed No
17 78 7460 Camey Richard 807 W Fourth St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 79 7460 Peach Jerry 811 N Walnut St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 80 7460 Begyn Darlene 207 N Elm St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 81 7460 Randall Reece 606 E Eleventh St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 82 7460 Sec Of HUD 1101 N Roseview Ave 5 15 17 5 20 17 Mowed No

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

Phone 
NumberFirst Name

 Mid 
Init

House 
Number

.N 
S E 
W.

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Weed Notice Tracking

Incident 
Number

Weed 
Notice 

Number Officer 
#

Date of Weed 
Notice Follow-Up Date

Follow-up ResultLast Name Street Name



Weeds Page 6

Page 6 of 8

Handed 
In For 

Mowing
Yr Number Yr # Mo Day Yr Mo Day Yr  Yes/No

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

Phone 
NumberFirst Name

 Mid 
Init

House 
Number

.N 
S E 
W.

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Weed Notice Tracking

Incident 
Number

Weed 
Notice 

Number Officer 
#

Date of Weed 
Notice Follow-Up Date

Follow-up ResultLast Name Street Name
17 83 7460 May Thomas 301 E Third St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Mowed No
17 84 7460 Lain Roxanne 213 E Third St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Mowed No
17 85 7460 Mitchell Charlotte 920 N East St 5 15 17 5 20 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 87 7460 Ozburn Mary 316 Franklin St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 88 7460 Vervynck Elisabeth 412 Franklin St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 89 7460 Hillier Perry 219 Payson St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 90 7460 Grabbe Penney 402 E Seventh St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Line Trimming Needed Yes
17 92 7460 Propp Mildred 916 N Vine St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 93 7460 Moats Harold Sr 638 N Walnut St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 94 7460 Anderson John 726 N Walnut St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 95 7460 Davis Bonnie 427 Ross St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Mowed No
17 96 7460 Moore Martin 701 W Fifth St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Mowed No
17 97 7460 Juozunas Laura 624 N Elm St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Mowed No
17 98 7460 Charlet Earl 531 W Sixth St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Mowed No
17 99 7460 Kewanee MHP 835 W Sixth St 5 18 17 5 23 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 100 7460 Robinson Brenda 1209 June St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 101 7460 Baker Renee 810 May St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 102 7460 Ryan Frank 913 Railroad Ave 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 103 7460 Craig Harlan 212 E College St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 104 7460 Taets Carol  102 Willard St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Line Trimming Needed Yes
17 105 7460 Smith Ned 1315 W Prospect St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 106 7460 Williams Jessie 621 N Walnut St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 107 7460 Davis Boyd 611 N Elm St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 108 7460 Verheecke Robert 300 E Sixth St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 109 7460 Spets Sophie 629 Odea St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 110 7460 Stone Dustin 506 Odea St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 111 7460 Stone Dustin 317 N Park St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 112 7460 Henry Co As Trustee 118 S Burr Blvd 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 113 7460 Murray Suzzanne 204 E Second St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 114 7460 Troop 180 Boy Scouts 324 E Second St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 115 7460 Schwigen David 510 N Grace Ave 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 116 7460 Moats Harold  700 W Fourth St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 117 7460 Ptashnik Adam 816 Franklin St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 118 7460 Grabbe Penny 822 Pine St 5 23 17 5 28 17 Mowed No
17 120 7460 Verduzco Gustavo 602 E Fifth St 5 26 17 5 31 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 121 7460 Self Rebecca 420 N Grace Ave 5 26 17 5 31 17 Mowed No
17 122 7460 Dawson Lucille 521 Cambridge Rd 5 26 17 5 31 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 123 7460 Minks William 709 Cambridge Rd 5 26 17 5 31 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 126 7460 Corral Jose 324 W Oak St 5 26 17 5 31 17 Mowed No
17 127 7460 Arnold Craig 600 N Lexington Ave 5 26 17 5 31 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 128 7460 Joudeh Faik 808 E Fourth St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Mowed No



Weeds Page 7

Page 7 of 8

Handed 
In For 

Mowing
Yr Number Yr # Mo Day Yr Mo Day Yr  Yes/No

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

Phone 
NumberFirst Name

 Mid 
Init

House 
Number

.N 
S E 
W.

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Weed Notice Tracking

Incident 
Number

Weed 
Notice 

Number Officer 
#

Date of Weed 
Notice Follow-Up Date

Follow-up ResultLast Name Street Name
17 129 7460 VerVynck Elisabeth 824 N Burr St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Line Trimming Needed Yes
17 130 7460 Hawkins Betsy 905 W Church St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 131 7460 Sutton & Associates 709 N Main St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Mowed No
17 132 7460 Sturtevant Richard 510 W Fifth St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Mowed No
17 133 7460 Tovar Yesenia 605 1/2 E Fifth St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Not Mowed Yes
17 134 7460 Joslyn Candy 601 E Fifth St 5 31 17 6 5 17 Mowed No



EOM Sheets.xls Page 8

Page 8 of 8

Kewanee Police Department Code Enforcement
Miscellaneous Activity:  Traffic Control, Citizen/Motorist Assist, etc…

Yr Number Mo Day Yr

Date Of 
Incident

Incident Description
House 

#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name / Location

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)Last Name First Name

Mid 
Init

Incident 
Number Officer 

# Phone #



KKeewwaanneeee  EE ..SS ..DD..AA ..   
SSeevveerree  WWeeaatthheerr  SSppootttteerrss  NNeettwwoorrkk  
Keith Edwards, ESDA Director 
kedwards@cityofkewanee.net 
401 East Third Street, Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Telephone (309)853-1911 Extension 267 
Fax (309)852-0948 
 
May 31, 2017 
 
To:  Gary Bradley, City Manager 
From:  Keith Edwards, KPD CSO/ESDA Director 
Subject:  May ESDA Report 
 
 
May 2:  Siren Tests. Sirens failed to go off, possible error in the radio room.  The radio box for the 
siren on West Third Street is still out for repair. 
 
May 10:  Severe Weather Threat.  Advised Police, Fire and ESDA Volunteers. Spotter activation 
not required. 
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 
Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 
central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 
Missouri. 
 
.DAY ONE...TODAY AND TONIGHT 
 
Severe thunderstorms are possible across much of the outlook area 
this afternoon and evening. The Storm Prediction Center has a 
placed a slight risk over the area roughly south of a line from 
Independence Iowa to Freeport Illinois. 
Scattered thunderstorms will move through eastern Iowa and 
northwest Illinois this morning. These are not expected to be 
severe, but may produce locally heavy downpours, frequent 
lightning and small hail. 
Thunderstorms are expected to redevelop this afternoon and 
continue into this evening. Some of these may be severe, with a 
threat of large hail, damaging winds and a few tornadoes. The 
initial severe weather threat will be associated with supercell 
thunderstorms over eastern Iowa and northwest Illinois after 2 
pm. These will be closely linked to the location of a warm front, 
which remains uncertain at this time. 
From late afternoon into the evening, more widespread coverage of 
thunderstorms is expected ahead of an advancing cold front. In 
addition to the continued potential for severe weather, these 
storms may also produce locally heavy rainfall and a threat of 
flash flooding. 
Area rivers are experiencing flooding. Please see the 
latest Flood Statements and Flood Warnings for details. 
.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 
Spotter activation may be needed this afternoon and evening. 
 



 
May 15:  Severe Weather Threat.   
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 
Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 
central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 
Missouri. 
.DAY ONE...TODAY AND TONIGHT 
Scattered thunderstorms are expected this afternoon and evening, 
along and north of Interstate 80. Some severe storms are possible. 
The main threats are large hail and damaging winds. Isolated 
tornadoes are also possible. The Highway 20 and 30 corridors have 
the highest risk of severe storms, between 2 pm and 10 pm. 
Area rivers are experiencing flooding. Please see the 
latest Flood Statements and Flood Warnings for details. 
.DAYS TWO THROUGH SEVEN...TUESDAY THROUGH SUNDAY 
There is a chance of thunderstorms late Tuesday night through 
Wednesday evening. Strong storms are possible Wednesday afternoon 
and evening. 
There is a risk of thunderstorms Thursday night through Saturday. It 
is too early to determine the severe weather risk. 
.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 
Spotter activation may be needed this afternoon and evening 
between 2 pm and 10 pm, mainly north of Interstate 80. 
 
May 17:  Severe Weather Threat.  Spotters on Standby.  KPD and KFD both advised.  Conference 
call with the National Weather Service at 12:30pm.   
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 
Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 
central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 
Missouri. 
.DAY ONE...TONIGHT 
Scattered thunderstorms are expected this morning. The main 
threats are lightning and hail to penny size. 
More widespread thunderstorms are expected this afternoon and 
evening. Fast-moving storms could produce damaging winds around 70 
mph and tornadoes. A secondary threat is large hail. 
A south wind will gust around 40 mph this afternoon. Drivers of 
high profile vehicles should use caution. 
Area rivers are experiencing flooding. Please see the 
latest Flood Statements and Flood Warnings for details. 
.DAYS TWO THROUGH SEVEN...WEDNESDAY THROUGH MONDAY 
There is a risk of thunderstorms late Thursday night through 
Saturday evening. It is too early to determine the severe weather 
risk. 
.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 
Spotter activation is expected between 2 PM and 10 PM CDT today. 
 
THE NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE HAS ISSUED TORNADO WATCH 234 IN 
 EFFECT UNTIL 11 PM CDT THIS EVENING FOR THE FOLLOWING AREAS 
 IN ILLINOIS THIS WATCH INCLUDES 11 COUNTIES 
 IN NORTH CENTRAL ILLINOIS 
 BUREAU                PUTNAM 
 IN NORTHWEST ILLINOIS 
 CARROLL               HENRY IL              JO DAVIESS 
 MERCER                ROCK ISLAND           STEPHENSON 



 WHITESIDE 
 IN WEST CENTRAL ILLINOIS 
 HENDERSON             WARREN 
 IN IOWA THIS WATCH INCLUDES 21 COUNTIES 
 IN EAST CENTRAL IOWA 
 BENTON                CEDAR                 CLINTON 
 IOWA                  JACKSON               JOHNSON 
 JONES                 LINN                  MUSCATINE 
 SCOTT 
 IN NORTHEAST IOWA 
 BUCHANAN              DELAWARE              DUBUQUE 
 IN SOUTHEAST IOWA 
 DES MOINES            HENRY IA              JEFFERSON 
 KEOKUK                LEE                   LOUISA 
 VAN BUREN             WASHINGTON 
 IN MISSOURI THIS WATCH INCLUDES 2 COUNTIES 
 IN NORTHEAST MISSOURI 
 CLARK                 SCOTLAND 
 THIS INCLUDES THE CITIES OF ALEDO, ANAMOSA, BETTENDORF, 
 BURLINGTON, CEDAR RAPIDS, CLINTON, CREDIT ISLAND, DAVENPORT, 
 DUBUQUE, FAIRFIELD, FREEPORT, GALENA, GENESEO, HENNEPIN, 
 INDEPENDENCE, IOWA CITY, KAHOKA, KEOKUK, KEOSAUQUA, MANCHESTER, 
 MAQUOKETA, MARENGO, MEMPHIS, MOLINE, MONMOUTH, MOUNT CARROLL, 
 MOUNT PLEASANT, MUSCATINE, OQUAWKA, PRINCETON, ROCK ISLAND, 
 SIGOURNEY, STERLING, TIPTON, VINTON, WAPELLO, AND WASHINGTON. 
Event duration expressed in local time (Central Standard Time): 
    Starting: Wed 05/17/2017 03:46PM Central Standard Time 
     Ending: Wed 05/17/2017 11:16PM Central Standard Time 
 
May 19:  Hazardous Weather Outlook for Clean-Up Day. 
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 
Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 
central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 
Missouri. 
.DAY ONE...TODAY AND TONIGHT 
Showers and thunderstorms are expected mainly this morning and 
again later tonight. The main threat with these storms will be 
lightning. A marginal risk of severe weather exists near the 
Iowa- Missouri border but not elsewhere in eastern Iowa and 
northwest Illinois. 
.DAYS TWO THROUGH SEVEN...SATURDAY THROUGH THURSDAY 
There is another chance of thunderstorms Saturday afternoon and 
evening. Lightning and a marginal risk of severe storms are the 
main threats. 
There is a chance of thunderstorms Monday night and Tuesday. It is 
too early to determine the severe weather risk, but lightning will 
be a threat. 
 
May 20:  Briefing call with the National Weather Service.  Risk of lightning.  Clean Up Day 
Postponed. 
 
 
 
 



May 23:  Severe Weather Threat. 
 
SPECIAL WEATHER STATEMENT 
NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE Quad Cities IA/IL 
254 PM CDT TUE MAY 23 2017 
ILZ001-002-007-009-016>018-232300- 
Whiteside-Carroll-Bureau-Jo Daviess-Stephenson-Henry-Putnam- 
254 PM CDT TUE MAY 23 2017 
...A line of showers capable of producing funnel clouds will affect 
Putnam... Whiteside...southeastern Jo 
Daviess...Henry...Carroll...Bureau and southeastern Stephenson 
Counties... 
LOCATIONS IMPACTED INCLUDE... 
Sterling, Kewanee, Rock Falls, Princeton, Morrison, Cambridge, Mount 
Carroll, Hennepin, Geneseo, Spring Valley, Galva, Henry, 
Prophetstown, DePue, Erie, Lanark, Granville, Walnut, Ladd and 
Milledgeville. 
Funnel clouds of this nature are short lived and rarely touch the 
ground. However, if you notice one approaching the ground, move 
indoors to a place of safety. 
The National Weather Service will continue to closely monitor the 
situation. Please forward reports of funnel cloud sightings to the 
nearest law enforcement agency for relay to the National Weather 
Service. 
 
May 26:  Severe Weather Threat. 
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 
Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 
central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 
Missouri. 
 
.DAY ONE...TODAY AND TONIGHT 
Scattered thunderstorms will develop across portions of the 
Outlook Area from mid morning and into the afternoon. Depending 
on the amount of heating and instability, a few of these storms 
may become strong or even severe, especially along and south of 
the Interstate 80 corridor. Gusty winds and hail will be the 
primary threats with any stronger thunderstorm. Locally heavy 
downpours will also accompany the thunderstorms, possibly 
producing ponding of water on roads and in drainage ditches. 
The Storm Prediction Center has placed areas generally along and 
south of a line from Keokuk Iowa, to Monmouth Illinois, and to 
southeast of Princeton Illinois in a marginal risk of severe 
weather today. 
The Mississippi River is experiencing flooding. Please see the 
latest Flood Statements and Flood Warnings for details. 
.DAYS TWO THROUGH SEVEN...SATURDAY THROUGH THURSDAY 
Saturday Afternoon and night...scattered thunderstorms are possible. 
Modest instability and forcing suggest the risk of severe storms 
is low with large hail to near 1 inch and isolated gusty winds to 
near 60 MPH the main risks. 
.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 
There is a low chance that spotter activation will be needed today 
generally along and south of the Interstate 80 corridor. Spotter 
activation may be needed Saturday afternoon and evening, again 
mainly along and south of Interstate 80. 
 
 

































 
 

The YMCA of Kewanee 
315 West 1st Street, Kewanee, IL 61443 
P 309 853 4431    F 309 856 5300    www.kewaneeymca.org 

 

June 5, 2017 

    

Dear Chief Ainley, Chief Shook and Gary Bradley, 

The YMCA of Kewanee will be hosting their 3rd annual “Color Fun Run” in 
conjunction with the Prairie Chicken Festival. The City of Kewanee has been very 
supportive of this fun family event while providing safety on the streets for the 
participants to travel.   

The event consists of all ages participating in a 5K (3.1 mile) untimed fun walk/run, 
with no winners or awards. The participants are showered with color powder at 8 
stations that will be set up along the city street routes. Participants in the event will 
wear a white t-shirt at the starting line, but finish plastered in color! The use of 
color powder in this type of event is a unique organic painted experience promoting 
healthiness, happiness and bringing people together in an artistic way.  

The Y would like to offer this fun healthy event again on Sat., July 15th. We are 
requesting the city’s support and approval for the usage of the city roads and 
assistance from the Kewanee Police Department.  The route will be the same as last 
year. A copy of the walk/run route is enclosed for your reference.   

The color powder substance will be purchased from the same company as last year. 
The substance is a cornstarch based product that is made in the USA, safe for 
participants and the environment.  

Thank you for your consideration and please feel free to contact Jodi or Kendra at 
the Y if you have any questions.  We also encourage you to come out on Sat., July 
15th to participate, or watch, in this awesome event!!  We look forward to hearing 
from you soon.  

Sincerely, 

 

 
Kendra Taylor, Fitness Director 
Jodi Wall, Finance Director 























City of Kewanee 

The Basics of the City’s Tax Increment Financing Areas 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 

 
  EDR 

  Economic Development Resources 
  p. 1 

.  

How did certain areas of the City become a Tax Increment Financing Area (“TIF”)?  
 

These areas met the definition of a “Blighted area”, “Conservation area”, or “Industrial 
park conservation area” as such terms are defined by the Tax Increment Allocation 
Redevelopment Act, and the City adopted ordinances making such finding and creating 
each individual TIF Area. 
 
 
What is the benefit of the TIF for the City’s economic (re)development effort?  
 

Every year, each TIF Area captures its “TIF Increment” 1 which can be used to pay for 
a wide variety of “redevelopment project costs”.  
 
 
Where is the TIF Increment deposited? 
 

The TIF Increment from each TIF Area is deposited into its own, separate, TIF 
account. 
 
 
What can the City pay for with this TIF Increment?  
 

Each TIF Area has a Plan which has identified public and private projects, activities and 
uses that the City will spend the TIF Increment on; by law, the TIF Increment can be 
used to pay for the following “redevelopment project costs”:     
 

1. Costs of studies, surveys, plans and other professional service costs, as well as 
the implementation and administration of the TIF; 

 

2. Marketing sites within the TIF to prospective businesses, developers, and 
investors  

 

3. Property assembly costs, including acquisition of land and other property, and 
site preparation (including the demolition of buildings); 

 

4. Costs of the rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair or remodeling of existing 
public or private buildings; 

 

5.  Construction of public works and improvements, including, in some specific 
instances, the cost of the construction of new municipal buildings; 

 

6. Job training and retraining, including payments to other taxing districts to 
provide such training and retraining; 

 

                                                 
1 Annually, all real property taxes generated by: the growth in the equalized assessed value of the 
properties within the TIF above the equalized assessed value of these properties the time of the 
establishment of the TIF.   
 



City of Kewanee 

The Basics of the City’s Tax Increment Financing Areas 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 

 
  EDR 

  Economic Development Resources 
  p. 2 

.  

7. Financing costs, such as those associated with underwriting, as well as 
capitalized interest; 

 
8. All or a portion of a taxing district’s capital costs resulting from 

(re)development within the TIF;  
 

9. A certain percentage of increased costs incurred by school districts and 
library districts resulting from “TIF-assisted” residential development; 

 

10. Relocation costs; 
 

11. Payments in lieu of taxes; 
 

12. Developer’s interest costs. 
 

(the TIF Act specifically states that the TIF Increment may not be used to pay for the 
of construction of new privately-owned buildings 2, and that none of the 
“redevelopment project costs” enumerated above can be paid for from the TIF 
Increment if the TIF Increment is used to “provide direct financial support to a retail 
entity initiating operations in the redevelopment project area while terminating 
operations at another Illinois location within 10 miles of the redevelopment project 
area but outside the boundaries of the redevelopment project area municipality”.  
 
 
How does the TIF Increment pay for “redevelopment project costs”? 
 

The TIF Increment can be used to: 
 

1. Amortize bonds or other obligations that are issued to pay for 
“redevelopment project costs” (public or private) incurred in the 
(re)development of the TIF 3;  

 

2. Directly pay for the City’s “redevelopment project costs”; 
 

3. Directly pay, or reimburse, a private developer for “redevelopment project 
costs”.   
 

 
 
 
 

                                                 
2 With one notable exception; TIF revenues may be used to help pay for the construction new 
housing units to be occupied by “low-income households” and “very low-income households”, as such 
terms are defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act 
 
3 There is no requirement that TIF bonds or other obligations be General Obligations of the City. 
 



City of Kewanee 

The Basics of the City’s Tax Increment Financing Areas 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 

 
  EDR 

  Economic Development Resources 
  p. 3 

.  

Can the TIF Areas be expanded? 
 

Yes, if the “expansion area” meets the definition of, and is found to be, a “Blighted area”, 
“Conservation area”, “Industrial Park Conservation Area”, (as such terms are defined in 
the TIF Act), or combination of any of such areas.  
 
 
Can the TIF Increment be shared between the TIF Areas? 
 

Yes, if the sharing occurs between TIF Areas that are:  
 

1. Contiguous to one another, or; 
 

2. Separated only by a public right of way from on another, or; 
 

3. Separated only by forest preserve property, and their boundaries are less than 
one mile apart. 
 

 
How long will the TIFs last? 
 
Each TIF Area can collect up to 23 years of Tax Increment, and remain in place until 
terminated by the City. 
 
 
 



City of Kewanee 

The Basics of Business Districts 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 

 
  EDR 

  Economic Development Resources 
  p. 1 

 

What are the statutory requirements to establish a Business District (“BD”)?   
 

A BD that can provide the City with a direct means to assist in economic development 
and redevelopment can be established in an area of the City that meets the statutory 
definition of a “Blighted area” 1 as found in the Business District Development and 
Redevelopment Law (65 ILCS 5/11-74.3 et seq.).  There is neither a minimum nor 
maximum size for a BD, but it must be a “contiguous area which includes only parcels 
of real property directly and substantially benefited by the proposed business district 
plan”. 
 
 
What is the process for establishing a BD? 
 

1. Research to determine that a portion the City meets the “Blighted area” 
definition 
 

2. Develop the business district plan (Plan) for this portion of the City 
 

3. Publish notices regarding a public hearing pertaining to the establishment of 
the BD 
 

4. Hold the public hearing 
 

5. Pass ordinance to establish the BD, adopt the Plan and levy the BD Tax 
 

6. Provide documentation to the Illinois Department of Revenue regarding the 
establishment of the BD, adoption of the business district taxes and the 
addresses in the BD 
 

7. BD Tax is levied – July 1st or January 1st  
 
 
What is the benefit of the BD for the City’s economic (re)development effort?  
 

Within a BD, the City levies an additional retailers’ occupation tax, service 
occupation tax and hotel operators’ occupation tax (collectively, the “BD Tax” 2) of 

                                                 
1 An area which, by reason of the predominance of defective, non-existent, or inadequate street 
layout, unsanitary or unsafe conditions, deterioration of site improvements, improper subdivision or 
obsolete platting, or the existence of conditions which endanger life or property by fire or other 
causes, or any combination of those factors, retards the provision of housing accommodations or 
constitutes an economic or social liability, an economic underutilization of the area, or a menace to 
the public health, safety, morals, or welfare. 
 
2 The BD Tax is NOT imposed on food for human consumption that is to be consumed off the 
premises where it is sold (other than alcoholic beverages, soft drinks, and food that has been 
prepared for immediate consumption), prescription and nonprescription medicines, drugs, medical 
appliances and certain medical equipment; nor is it imposed on tangible personal property titled or 
registered with an agency of the state government.   
 



City of Kewanee 

The Basics of Business Districts 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 

 
  EDR 

  Economic Development Resources 
  p. 2 

 

up to 1.0% to generate revenues which can then be used to pay for a wide variety of 
“business district project costs”.   
 
 
Where is the BD Tax deposited? 
 

Each BD has a separate account into which its respective BD Tax is deposited. 
 
 
What can the City pay for with the BD Tax?  
 

The BD Tax can be used to pay for the following “business district project costs”:     
 

1. Costs of studies, surveys, plans and other professional service costs, as 
well as the implementation, administration and marketing of the business 
district;  
 

2. Property assembly costs, including acquisition of land and other property, 
and including payments to developers as reimbursement for property 
assembly costs;  

 

3. Site preparation costs, including clearance, demolition or removal of any 
existing buildings, structures, fixtures, utilities, and improvements and 
clearing and grading of land;  

 

4. Costs of installation, repair, construction, reconstruction, extension, or 
relocation of public streets, public utilities, and other public site 
improvements within or without the business district which are essential 
to the preparation of the business district, including payments to 
developers as reimbursement for site preparation costs;  

 

5. Costs of renovation, rehabilitation, reconstruction, relocation, repair, or 
remodeling of existing public or private buildings, and including 
payments to developers as reimbursement for such costs;  

 

6. Costs of installation or construction within the business district of 
buildings, streets, improvements, equipment, utilities, or fixtures, and 
including payments to developers as reimbursements for such costs;  

 

7. Financing costs, such as those associated with underwriting, as well as 
capitalized interest; 

 

8. Relocation costs. 
 
(the Business District statute specifically states that BD Taxes may be used to 
reimburse private developers for the construction of privately owned buildings, 
and other public and private improvements, within the District)  

 



City of Kewanee 

The Basics of Business Districts 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

 
 

 ____________________________________ 

 
  EDR 

  Economic Development Resources 
  p. 3 

 

How does the BD Tax pay for “business district project costs”? 
 

The BD Tax can be used to: 
 

1. Amortize bonds or other obligations that are issued to pay for “business 
district project costs” (public or private) incurred in the (re)development of 
the BD 3;  
 

2. Directly pay for the City’s “business district project costs”; 
 

3. Reimburse a private developer for, “business district project costs”.   
 
 
What is a Business District Plan (“BD Plan”)? 
 

Besides certain statutory requirements (maps, legal description, street addresses 
and the like) the BD Plan identifies the activities and projects that the City proposes 
for the BD, states the rate of tax to be levied, identifies the “Business district project 
costs” on which the BD Tax is to be spent, and provides a description of any 
developer, user, or tenant of any property to be located or improved within the BD.  
 
 
Can a BD be expanded? 
 

Yes, if the “expansion area” meets the definition of, and is found to be, a “Blighted area”.  
 
 
How long will the City’s BD last? 
 

The BD can remain in place for up to 23 years from the date of the adoption of the 
ordinance imposing the BD Tax. 
 

                                                 
3 There is no requirement that BD bonds or other obligations be General Obligations of the City. 
  



  Item B 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 12, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5056 

AGENDA TITLE A resolution designating Speer Financial Inc. as a 
financial advisor for the City of Kewanee and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute engagement 
letters in accordance with the City’s procurement 
policy. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Identifies a Financial Advisor and authorizes the 
execution of engagement letters as needed for 
services in accordance with the procurement policy.   

BACKGROUND The use of an independent Financial Advisor is one 
of the recommended best practices of the 
Government Finance Officers Association.  Speer 
Financial has provided such advisory services since 
1954 and serves as the financial advisory to more 
cities in Illinois than any other advisor.  The staff 
identified by the firm to serve Kewanee has a 
combined 35 years of service with the firm and will be 
able to provide a high level of service when called 
upon.   

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  Item B 

ANALYSIS Speer’s proposal was well put together and very 
thorough.  A copy of it is available on the back 
conference table in City Hall for your review.     

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Request for Proposal was posted on the City website 
on April 27, 2017, with several firms being directly 
sent the request. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends adoption. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

N/A 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5056 
 
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING SPEER FINANCIAL INC AS THE CITY’S FINANCIAL 
ADVISOR FOR THE CITY OF KEWANEE AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE ENGAGEMENT LETTERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY’S PROCUREMENT 
POLICY, AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE 
IMMEDIATELY. 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee advertised and solicited for proposals for financial advisor  
services, and one proposal was received, and opened by Kewanee’s City Manager after 
4:00 p.m. on May 26, 2017; and  

WHEREAS, Staff reviewed the proposal received from Speer Financial and found it to be thorough, 
complete, and indicative of the firm’s expertise as a municipal financial advisor.    

WHEREAS, City staff has recommended acceptance of the proposal from Speer Financial, and the 
City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the City of Kewanee to name Speer 
Financial as the City’s financial advisor.   

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE 
THAT: 
 
Section 1 The proposal of Speer Financial is accepted and the City Manager is authorized to sign 

engagement letters with Speer Financial for financial advisor services with the firm in 
accordance with the City’s procurement policy.       

 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 12th day of June, 2017. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 
 
 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Michael Yaklich     



  Item C 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 12, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #3887 

AGENDA TITLE AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, 
HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, ESTABLISHING THE 
PREVAILING RATE OF WAGES FOR LABORERS, 
WORKMEN AND MECHANICS EMPLOYED ON 
PUBLIC WORKS OF SAID CITY 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Melinda Edwards, City Clerk 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as recommended: N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE As required by State Statute, establishes the 
appropriate wage level for laborers and workmen 
working on a contracted public works project for the 
city. 

BACKGROUND The Illinois Dept of Labor publishes the appropriate 
wage levels for workers who work on public works 
projects.  This Ordinance is required by state statute to 
be passed each year. 

ANALYSIS Required by statute, rates were determined by IDOL 
and are effective as of 6/5/17. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends adoption. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Most recent prevailing wage list from IL Dept of Labor. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 3887  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

ESTABLISHING THE PREVAILING RATE OF WAGES FOR LABORERS, WORKMEN 

AND MECHANICS EMPLOYED ON PUBLIC WORKS OF SAID CITY 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has enacted “An Act regulating wages of laborers, 

mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State, county, city or any 

public body or any political subdivision or by any one under contract for public works,” 

approved June 26, 1941, as amended, (820 ILCS 130/I et seq.); and 

 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid Act requires that the City of Kewanee investigate and ascertain 

the prevailing rate of wages as defined in said Act for laborers, mechanics and other workers in 

the locality of said City of Kewanee employed in performing construction of public works for 

said City of Kewanee; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KEWANEE, HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. To the extent and as required by “An Act regulating wages of laborers, 

mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State, county, city or any 

public body or any political subdivision or by any one under contract for public works,” 

approved June 26, 1941, as amended, the general prevailing rate of wages in this locality for 

laborers, mechanics and other workers engaged in construction of public works coming under the 

jurisdiction of the City of Kewanee is hereby ascertained to be the same as the prevailing rate of 

wages for construction work in the Henry County area as determined by the Department of 

Labor of the State of Illinois as of June 5, 2017, a copy of that determination being attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Copies of said determination are obtainable from 

the City Clerk of the City of Kewanee, Illinois. As required by said Act, any and all revisions of 

the prevailing rate of wages by the Department of Labor of time State of Illinois shall supersede 

the Department’s June determination and apply to any and all public works construction 

undertaken by the City of Kewanee. The definition of any terms appearing in this Ordinance 

which are also used in the aforesaid Act shall be the same as in said Act. 

SECTION 2. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply said general prevailing 

rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or employment except public works construction 

of the City of Kewanee to the extent required by the aforesaid Act. 

SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall publicly post or keep available for inspection by an 

interested party in the main office of this City, this determination or any revisions of such 

prevailing rate of wage. A copy of this determination or of the current revised determination of 

prevailing rate of wages then in effect shall be attached to all contract specifications. 



SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall mail a copy of this determination to any employer, and 

to any association of employers and to any person or association of employees who have filed 

their names and addresses, requesting copies of any determination stating the particular rates and 

the particular class of workers whose wages will be affected by such rates. 

SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall promptly file a certified copy of this Ordinance with 

both the Secretary of State Index Division and the Department of Labor of the State of Illinois. 

SECTION 6. The City Clerk shall cause to be published in a newspaper of general 

circulation within the area a copy of this Ordinance an abbreviated copy of the ordinance to 

announce that the same has been passed and is on file, and such publication shall constitute 

notice that the determination is effective and that this is the determination of this public body, 

with the complete ordinance to be published and made available for public inspection in 

pamphlet form. 

SECTION 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 8. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

Passed by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 12th day of June 2017. 

  

 

         ______________________________ 

Steve Looney, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  _________________________ 

 Melinda Edwards, City Clerk 

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     

Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     

 

 



This schedule contains the prevailing wage rates required to be paid for work performed on or after Monday, June 5, 2017 on public works 
projects in this County.  Pursuant to 820 ILCS 130/4, public bodies in this County that have active public works projects are responsible for 
notifying all contractors and subcontractors working on those public works projects of the change (if any) to rates that were previously in 
effect.  The failure of a public body to provide such notice does not relieve contractors or subcontractors of their obligations under the 
Prevailing Wage Act, including the duty to pay the relevant prevailing wage in effect at the time work subject to the Act is performed. 
 

HENRY COUNTY 
PREVAILING WAGE 

RATES EFFECTIVE JUNE 
5, 2017             

TradeTitle Region Type Class 
Base 
Wage 

Foreman 
Wage 

M-F 
OT OSA OSH H/W Pension Vacation Training 

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN All BLD  28.40 28.95 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 11.77 0.00 0.80 

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN All HWY  29.61 30.61 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 13.03 0.00 0.80 

ASBESTOS ABT-MEC All BLD  22.70 23.70 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.70 5.05 0.00 0.65 

BOILERMAKER All BLD  38.00 41.00 2.0 2.0 2.0 7.07 15.99 0.00 0.40 

BRICK MASON All BLD  38.69 39.69 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.01 9.62 0.00 0.84 

CARPENTER All BLD  27.70 29.09 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.36 11.26 0.00 0.60 

CARPENTER All HWY  30.25 31.75 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.06 14.37 0.00 0.45 

CEMENT MASON All All  36.70 37.70 1.5 2.0 2.0 9.40 13.59 0.00 0.50 

CERAMIC TILE FNSHER All BLD  33.88 33.88 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.40 5.86 0.00 0.75 
COMMUNICATION 

TECH SE BLD  33.25 34.75 1.5 1.5 2.0 14.12 12.00 1.41 0.72 
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT 

OP All All  42.47 48.52 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.52 11.89 0.00 0.42 
ELECTRIC PWR 

GRNDMAN All All  29.14 48.52 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.12 8.16 0.00 0.29 
ELECTRIC PWR 

LINEMAN All All  47.16 48.52 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.66 13.20 0.00 0.47 
ELECTRIC PWR TRK 

DRV All All  30.55 32.55 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.17 8.56 0.00 0.31 

ELECTRICIAN NW BLD  34.00 36.00 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.16 12.21 0.00 0.31 



ELECTRICIAN SE BLD  39.90 43.49 1.5 1.5 2.0 14.97 16.64 3.25 1.20 

ELECTRONIC SYS TECH NW BLD  24.75 26.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 7.27 6.22 0.00 0.31 
ELEVATOR 

CONSTRUCTOR All BLD  41.26 46.42 2.0 2.0 2.0 14.43 14.96 3.30 0.90 

GLAZIER All BLD  29.21 30.71 1.5 1.5 1.5 6.94 7.67 0.00 0.65 

HT/FROST INSULATOR All BLD  30.41 31.61 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.35 12.65 0.00 1.00 

IRON WORKER All All  30.25 32.67 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.49 12.29 1.55 0.69 

LABORER All BLD  28.61 29.61 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 13.03 0.00 0.80 

LABORER All HWY  27.92 28.92 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 12.70 0.00 0.80 

LABORER, SKILLED All BLD  28.61 29.61 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 13.03 0.00 0.80 

LABORER, SKILLED All HWY  27.92 28.92 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 12.70 0.00 0.80 

LATHER All BLD  27.70 29.09 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.61 10.51 0.00 0.60 

MACHINIST All BLD  45.35 47.85 1.5 1.5 2.0 7.26 8.95 1.85 0.00 

MARBLE FINISHERS All BLD  33.88 0.00 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.40 5.86 0.00 0.75 

MARBLE MASON All BLD  36.71 36.96 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.40 8.02 0.00 0.80 

MILLWRIGHT N BLD  29.82 32.80 1.5 1.5 2.0 4.30 8.73 0.00 0.56 

MILLWRIGHT S BLD  28.21 29.91 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.85 13.65 0.00 0.60 

OPERATING ENGINEER All BLD 5 30.15 31.15 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.95 6.60 1.50 0.80 

OPERATING ENGINEER All BLD 6 30.65 31.65 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.95 6.60 1.50 0.80 

OPERATING ENGINEER All BLD 7 30.40 31.40 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.95 6.60 1.50 0.80 

OPERATING ENGINEER E BLD 1 38.62 37.49 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.00 19.23 0.00 3.00 

OPERATING ENGINEER E BLD 2 35.84 37.49 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.00 19.23 0.00 3.00 

OPERATING ENGINEER E BLD 3 31.27 37.49 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.00 19.23 0.00 3.00 

OPERATING ENGINEER E HWY 1 38.62 41.62 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.00 19.23 0.00 3.00 

OPERATING ENGINEER E HWY 2 35.84 41.62 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.00 19.23 0.00 3.00 

OPERATING ENGINEER E HWY 3 31.27 41.62 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.00 19.23 0.00 3.00 

OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 1 32.50 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 2 29.85 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 3 28.80 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 4 32.75 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 5 33.25 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 



OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 6 33.75 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W BLD 7 33.50 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 1 32.50 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 2 29.85 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 3 28.80 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 4 32.75 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 5 33.25 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 6 33.75 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 7 33.00 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

OPERATING ENGINEER W HWY 8 33.50 34.50 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.80 10.25 2.00 0.90 

PAINTER All All  28.42 31.25 1.5 1.5 1.5 5.60 7.15 0.00 0.52 

PAINTER OVER 30FT All All  30.42 32.75 1.5 1.5 1.5 5.60 7.15 0.00 0.52 

PAINTER PWR EQMT All All  28.92 31.25 1.5 1.5 1.5 5.60 7.15 0.00 0.52 

PILEDRIVER All BLD  27.70 29.09 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.61 10.51 0.00 0.60 

PILEDRIVER All HWY  31.25 32.75 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.06 14.37 0.00 0.45 

PIPEFITTER All All  38.75 42.63 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.70 13.24 0.00 1.25 

PLASTERER All BLD  35.30 36.30 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.30 11.98 0.00 0.50 

PLUMBER All All  38.75 42.63 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.70 13.24 0.00 1.25 

ROOFER All BLD  26.75 28.75 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.34 6.92 0.00 0.29 

SHEETMETAL WORKER All BLD  31.27 33.42 1.5 1.5 2.0 7.14 12.83 0.00 0.54 

SPRINKLER FITTER All BLD  37.12 39.87 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.42 8.50 0.00 0.35 

STONE MASON All BLD  38.69 39.69 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.01 9.62 0.00 0.84 

TERRAZZO FINISHER All BLD  33.88  1.5 1.5 2.0 9.40 5.86 0.00 0.75 

TILE LAYER All BLD  27.70 29.09 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.61 10.51 0.00 0.60 

TILE MASON All BLD  36.71 36.96 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.40 8.02 0.00 0.80 

TRUCK DRIVER All All 1 35.15 38.67 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All All 2 35.64 38.67 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All All 3 35.91 38.67 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All All 4 36.21 38.67 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All All 5 37.17 38.67 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All O&C 1 28.12 31.24 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 



TRUCK DRIVER All O&C 2 28.51 31.24 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All O&C 3 28.73 31.24 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All O&C 4 28.97 31.24 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TRUCK DRIVER All O&C 5 29.74 31.24 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.92 5.86 0.00 0.25 

TUCKPOINTER All BLD  38.69 39.69 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.01 9.62 0.00 0.84 
 

Explanations 

HENRY COUNTY 

 

COMMUNICATIONS TECHNICIAN (SE) - Townships of Annawan, Cambridge, 

Burns, Kewanee, Weller, Galva, and Wethersfield. 

 

ELECTRICIANS AND ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN (NW) - That portion 

North and West of Annawan, Burns, Cambridge, and Weller Townships. 

 

MILLWRIGHT (NORTH) - North of interstate 80. 

 

OPERATING ENGINEERS (EAST) - The eastern half of the county divided by 

highway 82 excluding Geneseo. 

 

The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates 

of wages for work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day, 



Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and 

Veterans Day in some classifications/counties.  Generally, any of 

these holidays which fall on a Sunday is celebrated on the following 

Monday.  This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the 

appropriate overtime rate for holiday pay. Common practice in a given 

local may alter certain days of celebration.  If in doubt, please 

check with IDOL. 

 

Oil and chip resealing (O&C) means the application of road oils and 

liquid asphalt to coat an existing road surface, followed by 

application of aggregate chips or gravel to coated surface, and 

subsequent rolling of material to seal the surface. 

 

 

EXPLANATION OF CLASSES 

 

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos material/mold and hazardous 

materials from any place in a building, including mechanical systems 

where those mechanical systems are to be removed.  This includes the 

removal of asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from 

ductwork or pipes in a building when the building is to be demolished 



at the time or at some close future date. 

 

ASBESTOS - MECHANICAL - removal of asbestos material from mechanical 

systems, such as pipes, ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical 

systems are to  remain. 

 

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER, MARBLE FINISHER, TERRAZO FINISHER 

 

Assisting, helping or supporting the tile, marble and terrazzo 

mechanic by performing their historic and traditional work assignments 

required to complete the proper installation of the work covered by 

said crafts. The term "Ceramic" is used for naming the classification 

only and is in no way a limitation of the product handled.  Ceramic 

takes into consideration most hard tiles. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS TECHNICIAN - Southeast 

 

Installation, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair and service 

of radio, television, recording, voice, sound and vision production 

and reproduction,  telephone and telephone interconnect, facsimile, 

equipment and appliances used for domestic, commercial, educational 



and entertainment purposes, pulling of  wire through conduit but not 

the installation of conduit. 

 

ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN - Northwest 

 

Installing, assembling and maintaining sound and intercom, protection 

alarm (security), master antenna television, closed circuit 

television, computer  hardware and software programming and 

installation to the network's outlet and input (EXCLUDING all cabling, 

power and cable termination work historically  performed by wiremen), 

door monitoring and control, nurse and emergency call programming and 

installation to the system's outlet and input (EXCLUDING all 

cabling, power and cable termination work historically performed by 

wiremen), clock and timing; and the installation and maintenance of 

transmit and receive  antennas, transmitters, receivers, and 

associated apparatus which operates in conjunction with the above 

systems.  All work associated with these system  installations will be 

included EXCEPT (1) installation of protective metallic conduit, 

excluding less than ten-foot runs strictly for protection of cable, 

and (2) 120  volt AC (or higher) power wiring and associated hardware. 

 



LABORER,  SKILLED - BUILDING 

 

The skilled laborer building (BLD) classification shall encompass the 

following types of work, irrespective of the site of the work: tending 

of carpenters in unloading, handling, stockpiling and distribution 

operations, also other building crafts, mixing, handling, and 

conveying of all materials used by masons, plasterers and other 

building construction crafts, whether done by hand or by any process. 

The drying of plastering when done by salamander heat, and the 

cleaning and clearing of all debris.  All work pertaining to and in 

preparation of asbestos abatement and removal.  The building of 

scaffolding and staging for masons and plasterers.  The excavations 

for buildings and all other construction, digging, of trenches, piers, 

foundations and holes, digging, lagging, sheeting, cribbing, bracing 

and propping of foundations, holes, caissons, cofferdams, and dikes, 

the setting of all guidelines for machine or hand excavation and 

subgrading.  The mixing, handling, conveying, pouring, vibrating, 

gunniting and otherwise applying of concrete, whether by hand or other 

method of concrete for any walls, foundations, floors, or for other 

construction concrete sealant men.  The wrecking, stripping, 

dismantling, and handling of concrete forms and false work, and the 



building of centers for fireproofing purposes.  Boring machine, gas, 

electric or air in preparation for shoving pipe, telephone cable, and 

so forth, under highways, roads, streets and alleys.  All hand and 

power operating cross cut saws when used for clearing.  All work in 

compressed air construction.  All work on acetylene burners in 

salvaging.  The blocking and tamping of concrete.  The laying of sewer 

tile and conduit, and pre-cast materials.  The assembling and 

dismantling of all jacks and sectional scaffolding, including elevator 

construction and running of slip form jacks.  The work of drill 

running and blasting, including wagon drills.  The wrecking, 

stripping, dismantling, cleaning, moving and oiling of forms.  The 

cutting off of concrete piles.  The loading, unloading, handling and 

carrying to place of installation of all rods, (and materials for use 

in reinforcing) concrete and the hoisting of same and all signaling 

where hoist is used in this type of construction coming under the 

jurisdiction of the Laborers' Union.  And, all other labor work not 

awarded to any other craft.  Mortar mixers, kettlemen and carrier of 

hot stuff, tool crib men, watchmen (Laborer), firemen or salamander 

tenders, flagmen, deck hands, installation and maintenance of 

temporary gas-fired heating units, gravel box men, dumpmen and 

spotters, fencing Laborers, cleaning lumber, pit men, material 



checkers, dispatchers, unloading explosives, asphalt plant laborers, 

writer of scale tickets, fireproofing laborers, janitors, asbestos 

abatement and removal laborers, handling of materials treated with 

oil, creosote, chloride, asphalt, and/or foreign material harmful to 

skin or clothing, Laborers with de-watering systems, gunnite nozzle 

men, laborers tending masons with hot material or where foreign 

materials are used, Laborers handling masterplate or similar 

materials, laser beam operator, concrete burning machine operator, 

material selector men working with firebrick or combustible material, 

dynamite men, track laborers, cement handlers, chloride handlers, the 

unloading and laborers with steel workers and re-bars, concrete 

workers (wet), luteman, asphalt raker, curb asphalt machine operator, 

ready mix scalemen, permanent, portable or temporary plant drilling 

machine operator, plaster tenders, underpinning and shoring of 

buildings, fire watch, signaling of all power equipment, to include 

trucks excavating equipment, etc., tree topper or trimmer when in 

connection to construction, tunnel helpers in free air, batch dumpers, 

kettle and tar men, tank cleaners, plastic installers, scaffold 

workers, motorized buggies or motorized unit used for wet concrete or 

handling of building materials, sewer workers, rod and chain men, 

vibrator operators, mortar mixer operator, cement silica, clay, fly 



ash, lime and plasters, handlers (bulk or bag), cofferdam workers, on 

concrete paving, placing, cutting and tying of reinforcing, deck hand, 

dredge hand and shore laborers, bankmen on floating plant, asphalt 

workers with machine & layers, grade checker, power tools, caisson 

workers, lead man on sewer work, welders, cutters, burners and torch 

men, chain saw operators, paving breaker, jackhammer and drill 

operator, layout man and/or drainage tile layer, steel form setters -- 

street and highway, air tamping hammerman, signal man on crane, 

concrete saw operator, screen man on asphalt pavers, front end man on 

chip spreader, multiple concrete duct -- lead man. 

 

LABORER, SKILLED - HIGHWAY 

 

The skilled laborer heavy and highway (HWY) classification shall 

encompass the following types of work, irrespective of the site of the 

work: handling of materials treated with oil, creosote, asphalt 

and/or any foreign materials harmful to skin or clothing, track 

laborers, chloride handlers, the unloading and loading with steel 

workers and re-bars, concrete workers (wet), tunnel helpers in free 

air, batch dumpers, mason tenders, kettle and tar men, plastic 

installers, scaffold workers, motorized buggies or motorized unit used 



for wet concrete or handling of building materials, laborers with 

de-watering systems, sewer workers plus depth, rod and chainmen, 

vibrator operators, mortar mixer operators, cement silica, clay, fly 

ash, lime and plasters, handlers (bulk or bag), cofferdam workers plus 

depth, on concrete paving, placing, cutting and tying or reinforcing, 

deck hand, dredge hand shore laborers, bankmen on floating plant, 

asphalt workers with machine, and layers, grade checker, power tools, 

stripping of all concrete forms excluding paving forms, dumpmen and 

spotters, when necessary, caisson workers plus depth, gunnite nozzle 

men, welders, cutters, burners and torchmen, chain saw operators, 

paving breaker, jackhammer and drill operators, layout man and/or 

drainage tile layer, steel form setters - street and highway, air 

tamping hammerman, signal man on crane, concrete saw operator, 

screedman on asphalt pavers, front end man on chip spreader, multiple 

concrete duct, luteman, asphalt raker, curb asphalt machine operator, 

ready mix scalemen (portable or temporary plant), laser beam operator, 

concrete burning machine operator, and coring machine operator. 

 

 

OPERATING ENGINEERS - BUILDING  (West) 

 



Class 1. Shovel; Concrete Spreader; Dipper Dredge Operator; Dipper 

Dredge Crane man; Dual Purpose Truck (boom, Boom, Winch, etc.); 

Mechanic-Welder; Pile Driver; Boom Tractor or Side Boom; Trenching 

Machine (40 H.P. and over); Building Hoist (1, 2 or 3 drums); Cleaning 

and Priming Machine; Backfiller (throw bucket); Locomotive Engineer; 

Concrete Paver; Slip Form Paver; Caisson Augering Machines; Mucking 

Machine; Asphalt Heater-Planer Unit; Laser Screed; Pug Mill; Concrete 

Conveyor or Pump; Mechanical loaded Log Chippers or similar machines; 

Group Equipment Greaser; Off-Road Haul Units; Pipe Bending; Automatic 

Curbing Machines; Blastholer; Self-Propelled Rotary Drill or similar 

machines; Work Boat; Combination Concrete Finishing Machine and Float; 

Asphalt Paver Screed Operator; Forklift (6,000 lb. cap. or over or 

working heights 28 ft. and above); Chip Spreader; Straddle Carrier; 

Asphalt Paver; Asphalt Plant Operator; Boring Machine (Directional, 

Vertical, or Horizontal); Central Redi-Mix Plant Operator; Combination 

Backhoe Front End loader; Concrete Breaker or Hydro-Hammer (excluding 

walk-behinds); Concrete Wheel Saw (Large self-propelled - excluding 

walk-behinds); Crusher (Stone, Concrete, Asphalt, etc.); 

Curing-Tinning Machine; Excavator; Farm-type Tractor Operating Scoop 

or Scraper or with Power Attachment; Grader; Motor Grader; Motor 

Patrol; Auto Grader; Form Grader; Pull Grader; Sub Grader; Elevating 



Grader; Guard Rail Post Driver; Hoists; Hydraulic Dredge Leverman or 

Engineer; Hydro-Vac truck mounted or pull type (excluding hose work), 

and similar equipment; Loader (Track, Rubber Tire, or Articulated); 

Milling Machine (excluding walk-behinds); Road Widener-Shoulder 

Spreader; Scraper (Self-Propelled); Self-Propelled Roller or Tire 

Roller (on asphalt or Blacktop); Sheep Foot or Pad Foot Compactor 

(excluding walk-behinds); Steel Track-Type Tractor (Dozer, Push Cat, 

etc.); Transfer or Shuttle Buggy (excluding motorized wheel barrows 

and Georgia buggies). 

 

Class 2.  Asphalt Booster; Fireman and Pump Operator at Asphalt Plant; 

Mud Jack; Distributor; Self-propelled Roller (other than provided for 

in Class I); Pump Operator (more than one well-point pump); Trench 

Machine (under 40 H.P.); Forklift (less than 6,000 lb. cap. or working 

heights below 28 ft.); Gypsum Pump; Conveyor over 20 H.P.; Light 

Plant; Boiler (Engineer or Fireman); Mechanical Broom; Driver on Truck 

Crane or similar machines; Elevator (Permanent inside or Temporary 

outside); Farm-Type Tractor (without Power Attachment); Grout Pump 

(excluding hose work). 

 

Class 3. Skid Loader; Oiler; Mechanic's Helper; Mechanical Heater 



(other than steam boiler); Small Outboard Motor Boat (Safety Boat and 

Life Boat); Engine Driven Welding Machine; Water Pumps; Air Compressor 

(400 c.f.m. or over); Deck Engineers. 

 

Class 4.  Leadman - Mechanic or Equipment Greaser. 

 

Class 5.  Track Excavator with Bucket (4 cubic yard and up to but not 

including 6 cubic yard). 

 

Class 6. Track Excavator with Bucket (6 cubic yard and over). 

 

Class 7. Crane (Friction or Hydraulic, regardless of size or 

attachments); Tow or Push Boat. 

 

OPERATING ENGINEERS- HIGHWAY  (West) 

 

Class 1. Shovel; Concrete Spreader; Dipper Dredge Operator; Dipper 

Dredge Crane man; Dual Purpose Truck (Boom, Winch, etc.); 

Mechanic-Welder; Pile Driver; Boom Tractor or Side Boom; Building 

Hoist (1, 2 or 3 drums); Cleaning and Priming Machine; Backfiller 

(throw bucket); Locomotive Engineer; Concrete Paver; Slip Form Paver; 



Caisson Augering Machines; Mucking Machine; Asphalt Heater Planer 

Unit; Laser Screed; Pug Mill; Concrete Conveyor or Pump (excluding 

truck-mounted); Mechanical loaded Log Chippers or similar machines; 

Group Equipment Greaser; off-road haul units; Pipe Bending; Automatic 

Curbing Machines; Blastholer; Self-propelled Rotary Drill or similar 

machines; Work Boat; Combination Concrete Finishing Machine and Float; 

Asphalt Paver Screed Operator; Forklift (6,000 lb. cap. or over or 

working heights above 28 ft.); Chip Spreader; Asphalt Paver; Asphalt 

Plant Operator; Boring Machine (Directional, Vertical, or Horizontal); 

Central Redi-Mix Plant Operator; Combination Backhoe Front End 

loader; Concrete Breaker or Hydro-Hammer (excluding walk-behinds); 

Concrete Wheel Saw (Large self-propelled - excluding walk-behinds); 

Crusher (Stone, Concrete, Asphalt, etc.); Curing-Tinning Machine; 

Excavator; Farm-Type Tractor Operating Scoop or Scraper with Power 

Attachment; Grader; Motor Grader; Motor Patrol; Auto Grader; Form 

Grader; Pull Grader; Sub Grader; Elevating Grader; Guard Rail Post 

Driver; Hoists; Hydraulic Dredge Leverman or Engineer; Hydro-Vac truck 

mounted or pull type, and similar equipment; Loader (Track, Rubber 

Tire, or Articulated); Milling Machine (excluding walk-behinds); Road 

Widener-Shoulder Spreader; Scraper (self-propelled); Self-propelled 

Roller or Tire Roller (on asphalt or Blacktop); Sheep Foot or Pad Foot 



Compactor (excluding walk-behinds); Steel Track-Type Tractor (Dozer, 

Push Cat, etc.); Transfer or Shuttle Buggy (excluding motorized wheel 

barrows and Georgia buggies); Trenching Machine (40 H.P. and over). 

 

Class 2. Asphalt Booster; Fireman and Pump Operator at Asphalt Plant; 

Mud Jack; Farm-Type Tractor without Power attachment; Distributor; 

Straddle Carrier; Self-propelled Roller or Compactor (other than 

provided for in Class I); Pump Operator (more than one well-point 

pump); Trench Machine (under 40 H.P.); Forklift (less than 6,000  lb. 

capacity or working heights below 28 ft.); Conveyor over 20 H.P.; Air 

Compressor (400 c.f.m. or over); Light Plant; Boiler (Engineer or 

Fireman); Mechanical Broom; Driver on Truck Crane or similar machines; 

Elevator (Permanent inside or Temporary outside); Grout Pump 

(excluding hose work). 

 

Class 3. Oiler; Mechanic's Helper; Mechanical Heater (other than steam 

boiler); Small Outboard Motor Boat (Safety Boat and Life Boat); 

Engine Driven Welding Machine; skid steer. 

 

Class 4.  Leadman - Mechanic or Equipment Greaser. 

 



Class 5.  Track Excavator with Bucket (4 cubic yard and up to but not 

including 6 cubic yard). 

 

Class 6. Track Excavator with Bucket (6 cubic yard and over). 

 

Class 7. Truck mounted Concrete Conveyor or Pumps Extending to 90 ft. 

or more. 

 

Class 8.  Crane (Friction or Hydraulic, regardless of size or 

attachments); Tow or Push Boat. 

 

 

OPERATING ENGINEERS - BUILDING - EAST 

 

Class 1.  Cranes; Overhead Cranes; Gradall; All Cherry Pickers; 

Mechanics; Central Concrete Mixing Plant Operator; Road Pavers (27E - 

Dual Drum - Tri Batchers);  Blacktop Plant Operators and Plant 

Engineers; 3 Drum Hoist; Derricks; Hydro Cranes; Shovels; Skimmer 

Scoops; Koehring Scooper; Drag Lines; Backhoe; Derrick  Boats; Pile 

Drivers and Skid Rigs; Clamshells; Locomotive Cranes; Dredge (all 

types) Motor Patrol; Power Blades - Dumore - Elevating and similar 



types; Tower  Cranes (Crawler-Mobile) and Stationary; Crane-type 

Backfiller; Drott Yumbo and similar types considered as Cranes; 

Caisson Rigs; Dozer; Tournadozer; Work  Boats; Ross Carrier; 

Helicopter; Tournapulls - all and similar types; Scoops (all sizes); 

Pushcats; Endloaders (all types); Asphalt Surfacing Machine; Slip Form 

Paver;  Rock Crusher; Heavy Equipment Greaser; CMI, CMI Belt Placer, 

Auto Grade & 3 Track and similar types; Side Booms; Multiple Unit 

Earth Movers; Creter Crane;  Trench Machine; Pump-crete-Belt 

Crete-Squeeze Cretes-Screw-type Pumps and Gypsum; Bulker & Pump - 

Operator will clean; Formless Finishing Machine;  Flaherty Spreader or 

similar types; Screed Man on Laydown Machine; Wheel Tractors 

(industrial or Farm-type w/Dozer-Hoe-Endloader or other attachments); 

F.W.D. & Similar Types; Vermeer Concrete Saw. 

 

Class 2.  Dinkeys; Power Launches; PH One-pass Soil Cement Machine 

(and similar types); Pugmill with Pump; Backfillers; Euclid Loader; 

Forklifts; Jeeps w/Ditching  Machine or other attachments; Tuneluger; 

Automatic Cement and Gravel Batching Plants; Mobile Drills (Soil 

Testing) and similar types; Gurries and Similar Types;  (1) and (2) 

Drum Hoists (Buck Hoist and Similar Types); Chicago Boom; Boring 

Machine & Pipe Jacking Machine; Hydro Boom; Dewatering System; Straw 



Blower;  Hydro Seeder; Assistant Heavy Equipment Greaser on Spread; 

Tractors (Track type) without Power Unit pulling Rollers; Rollers on 

Asphalt -- Brick Macadem;  Concrete Breakers; Concrete Spreaders; Mule 

Pulling Rollers; Center Stripper; Cement Finishing Machines & CMI 

Texture & Reel Curing Machines; Cement Finishing  Machine; Barber 

Green or similar loaders; Vibro Tamper (All similar types) 

Self-propelled; Winch or Boom Truck; Mechanical Bull Floats; Mixers 

over 3 Bag to 27E;  Tractor pulling Power Blade or Elevating Grader; 

Porter Rex Rail; Clary Screed; Truck Type Hoptoe Oilers; Fireman; 

Spray Machine on Paving; Curb Machines;  Truck Crane Oilers; Oil 

Distributor; Truck-Mounted Saws. 

 

Class 3.  Air Compressor; Power Subgrader; Straight Tractor; Trac Air 

without attachments; Herman Nelson Heater, Dravo, Warner, Silent Glo, 

and similar types;  Roller:  Five (5) Ton and under on Earth or 

Gravel; Form Grader; Crawler Crane & Skid Rig Oilers; Freight 

Elevators - permanently installed; Pump; Light Plant;  Generator; 

Conveyor (1) or (2) - Operator will clean; Welding Machine; Mixer (3) 

Bag and Under (Standard Capacity with skip); Bulk Cement Plant; Oiler 

on Central  Concrete Mixing Plant. 

 



OPERATING ENGINEERS - HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION - EAST 

 

CLASS 1.  Cranes; Hydro Cranes; Shovels; Crane Type Backfiller; Tower, 

Mobile, Crawler, & Stationary Cranes; Derricks; Hoists (3 Drum); 

Draglines; Drott Yumbo & Similar Types considered as Cranes; 360 

Degree Swing Excavator (Shears, Grapples, Movacs, etc.); Back Hoe; 

Derrick Boats; Pile Driver and Skid Rigs; Clam Shell; Locomotive - 

Cranes; Road Pavers - Single Drum - Dual Drum - Tri Batcher; Motor 

Patrols & Power Blades - Dumore - Elevating & Similar Types; 

Mechanics; Central Concrete Mixing Plant Operator; Asphalt Batch Plant 

Operators and Plant Engineers; Gradall; Caisson Rigs; Skimmer Scoop - 

Koering Scooper; Dredges (all types); Hoptoe; All Cherry Pickers; 

Work Boat; Ross Carrier; Helicopter; Dozer; Tournadozer; Tournapulls - 

all and similar types; Operation of Concrete and all Recycle 

Machines; Multiple Unit Earth Movers; Scoops (all sizes); Pushcats; 

Endloaders (all types); Asphalt Surfacing Machine; Slip Form Paver; 

Rock Crusher; Operation of Material Crusher, Screening Plants, and 

Tunnel Boring Machine; Heavy Equipment Greaser (top greaser on 

spread); CMI, Auto Grade, CMI Belt Placer & 3 Track and Similar Types; 

Side Booms; Asphalt Heater & Planer Combination (used to plane 

streets); Wheel Tractors (with Dozer, Hoe or Endloader Attachments); 



CAT Earthwork Compactors and Similar Types; Blaw Knox Spreader and 

Similar Types; Trench Machines; Pump Crete - Belt Crete - Squeeze 

Crete - Screw Type Pumps and Gypsum (operator will clean); Creter 

Crane; Operation of Concrete Pump Truck; Formless Finishing Machines; 

Flaherty Spreader or Similar Types; Screed Man on Laydown Machine; 

Vermeer Concrete Saw; Operation of Laser Screed; Span Saw; Dredge 

Leverman; Dredge Engineer; Lull or Similar Type; Hydro-Boom Truck; 

Operation of Guard Rail Machine; and Starting Engineer on Pipeline or 

Construction (11 or more pieces) including: Air Compressor (Trailer 

Mounted), All Forced Air Heaters (regardless of Size), Water Pumps 

(Greater than 4-1/2" or Total Discharge Over 4-1/2"), Light Plants, 

Generators (Trailer Mounted - Excluding Decontamination Trailer), 

Welding Machines (Any Size or Mode of Power), Conveyor, Mixer (any 

size), Stud Welder, Power Pac, etc, and Ground Heater (Trailer 

Mounted). 

 

CLASS 2.  Bulker & Pump; Power Launches; Boring Machine & Pipe Jacking 

Machine; Dinkeys; Operation of Carts, Powered Haul Unit for a Boring 

Machine; P & H One Pass Soil Cement Machines and Similar Types; Wheel 

Tractors (Industry or Farm Type - Other); Back Fillers; Euclid Loader; 

Fork Lifts; Jeep w/Ditching Machine or Other Attachments; Tunneluger; 



Automatic Cement & Gravel Batching Plants; Mobile Drills - Soil 

Testing and Similar Types; Pugmill with Pump; All (1) and (2) Drum 

Hoists; Dewatering System; Straw Blower; Hydro-Seeder; Bump Grinders 

(self-propelled); Assistant Heavy Equipment Greaser; Apsco Spreader; 

Tractors (Track-Type) without Power Units Pulling Rollers; Rollers on 

Asphalt - Brick or Macadam; Concrete Breakers; Concrete Spreaders; 

Cement Strippers; Cement Finishing Machines & CMI Texture & Reel 

Curing Machines; Vibro-Tampers (All Similar Types Self-Propelled); 

Mechanical Bull Floats; Self-Propelled Concrete Saws; Truck Mounted 

Power Saws; Operation of Curb Cutters; Mixers - Over Three (3) Bags; 

Winch and Boom Trucks; Tractor Pulling Power Blade or Elevating 

Grader; Porter Rex Rail; Clary Screed; Mule Pulling Rollers; Pugmill 

without Pump; Barber Greene or Similar Loaders; Track Type Tractor 

w/Power Unit attached (minimum); Fireman; Spray Machine on Paving; 

Curb Machines; Paved Ditch Machine; Power Broom; Self-Propelled 

Sweepers; Self-Propelled Conveyors; Power Subgrader; Oil Distributor; 

Straight Tractor; Truck Crane Oiler; Truck Type Oilers; Directional 

Boring Machine; Horizontal Directional Drill; Articulating End Dump 

Vehicles; Starting Engineer on Pipeline or Construction (6 -10 

pieces) including: Air Compressor (Trailer Mounted), All Forced Air 

Heaters (regardless of Size), Water Pumps (Greater than 4-1/2" or 



Total Discharge Over 4-1/2"), Light Plants, Generators (Trailer 

Mounted - Excluding Decontamination Trailer), Welding Machines (Any 

Size or Mode of Power), Conveyor, Mixer (any size), Stud Welder, Power 

Pac, etc., and Ground Heater (Trailer Mounted). 

 

CLASS 3.  Straight Framed Truck Mounted Vac Unit (separately powered); 

Trac Air Machine (without attachments); Rollers - Five Ton and Under 

on Earth and Gravel; Form Graders; Bulk Cement Plant; Oilers; and 

Starting Engineer on Pipeline or Construction (3 - 5  pieces) 

including: Air Compressor (Trailer Mounted), All Forced Air Heaters 

(regardless of Size), Water Pumps (Greater than 4-1/2" or Total 

Discharge Over 4-1/2"), Light Plants, Generators (Trailer Mounted - 

Excluding Decontamination Trailer), Welding Machines (Any Size or Mode 

of Power), Conveyor, Mixer (any size), Stud Welder, Power Pac, etc., 

and Ground Heater (Trailer Mounted). 

 

SURVEY WORKER - Operated survey equipment including data collectors, 

G.P.S. and robotic instruments, as well as conventional levels and 

transits. 

 

TRUCK DRIVER - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION 



Class 1.  Drivers on 2 axle trucks hauling less than 9 ton.  Air 

compressor and welding machines and brooms, including those pulled by 

separate units, truck driver  helpers, warehouse employees, mechanic 

helpers, greasers and tiremen, pickup trucks when hauling materials, 

tools, or workers to and from and on-the-job  site, and fork lifts up 

to 6,000 lb. capacity. 

 

Class 2.  Two or three axle trucks hauling more than 9 ton but hauling 

less than 16 ton.  A-frame winch trucks, hydrolift trucks, vactor 

trucks or similar  equipment when used for transportation purposes. 

Fork lifts over 6,000 lb. capacity, winch trucks, four axle 

combination units, and ticket writers. 

 

Class 3.  Two, three or four axle trucks hauling 16 ton or more. 

Drivers on water pulls, articulated dump trucks, mechanics and working 

forepersons, and  dispatchers.  Five axle or more combination units. 

 

Class 4.  Low Boy and Oil Distributors. 

 

Class 5.  Drivers who require special protective clothing while 

employed on hazardous waste work. 



 

TRUCK DRIVER - OIL AND CHIP RESEALING ONLY. 

 

This shall encompass laborers, workers and mechanics who drive 

contractor or subcontractor owned, leased, or hired pickup, dump, 

service, or oil distributor trucks.  The work includes transporting 

materials and equipment (including but not limited to, oils, aggregate 

supplies, parts, machinery and tools) to or from the job site; 

distributing oil or liquid asphalt and aggregate; stock piling 

material when in connection with the actual oil and chip contract. 

The Truck Driver (Oil & Chip Resealing) wage classification does not 

include supplier delivered materials. 

 

Other Classifications of Work: 

 

For definitions of classifications not otherwise set out, the 

Department generally has on file such definitions which are available. 

If a task to be performed is not subject to one of the 

classifications of pay set out, the Department will  upon being 

contacted state which neighboring county has such a classification and 

provide such rate, such rate being deemed to exist by reference in 



this  document.  If no neighboring county rate applies to the task, 

the Department shall undertake a special determination, such special 

determination  being then deemed to have existed under this 

determination.  If a project requires these, or any classification not 

listed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-1710 for  wage rates or 

clarifications. 

 

LANDSCAPING 

 

Landscaping work falls under the existing classifications for laborer, 

operating engineer and truck driver.  The work performed by landscape 

plantsman and  landscape laborer is covered by the existing 

classification of laborer.  The work performed by landscape operators 

(regardless of equipment used or its size) is  covered by the 

classifications of operating engineer.  The work performed by 

landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) is 

covered by the  classifications of truck driver. 

 

 

 



  Item D 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 12, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5057 

AGENDA TITLE A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE TEMPORARY 
CLOSURE OF SECOND & MAIN STREETS, US 
RTE. 34 AND STATE HWY. 78, FOR THE ANNUAL 
HOG DAYS PARADE 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Melinda Edwards, City Clerk 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as recommended: N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes Closure of the City streets for the annual 
Hog Days parade 

BACKGROUND This is the annual resolution to authorize the closure of 
the state highways for the hog days parade.   

SPECIAL NOTES The State recently sent information regarding an 
increase in the insurance limits needed.  Those 
changes are included in this Resolution. 

ANALYSIS This resolution will be sent to the state, along with 
proof of insurance from the Hog Capital BBQ 
Committee for state approval to close the state routes 
for the parade. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 



  Item D 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends adoption 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

N/A 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5057 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF SECOND & MAIN STREETS, US 
RTE. 34 AND STATE HWY. 78, FOR THE ANNUAL HOG DAYS PARADE AND DECLARING 
THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT UPON PASSAGE, AND IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH LAW. 
 
WHEREAS, the Ambassador Club of the Chamber of Commerce is sponsoring a Hog Days Parade in the 

City of Kewanee, and such event constitutes a public purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Hog Days Parade will require the temporary closure of portions of Second Street (from 

East Street to Main Street) and/or US Rte. 34, and Main Street (from Second Street to Central 
Blvd.), as well as US Rte. 34 and State Hwy. in the City of Kewanee; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code authorizes the Department of Transportation 

(IDOT) to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions of State Highways for 
such public purposes. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Kewanee: 

 
Section 1: Permission to close off US Rte. 34 along Second Street from East Street to Main Street, and 

US Rte. 34 and State Route 78 along Main Street from Second Street to Central Blvd., as 
designated above, be requested of the IDOT. 

 
Section 2: This closure shall occur during the approximate time period between 2:00 P. M. and 4:00 P.M. 

on Saturday, September 2, 2017, for the specified purpose of holding the Hog Days Parade. 
 
Section 3: Traffic from that closed portion of highway shall be detoured over routes with an all-weather 

surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of 
the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the 
State Highway. Where appropriate the parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour 
routes to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic. The detour route shall be as follows 

 
Driving North on Rte.’s US34 & IL78: Turn West on to West Prospect Street; thence North on Grove 
Street; thence Northeast on to Commercial Street; thence North on Park Street; thence East on to 
5th Street; thence North on to Main Street (Hwy. 78). Route 34 only turns east on to 9th Street, 
thence South on Kent Street to Railroad Avenue on South side of railway line; thence East on to 
Rte. 34. The detour route is the reciprocal for traffic in the opposite direction. 

 
Section 4: The City of Kewanee assumes full responsibility for the direction, protection, and regulation of 

the traffic during the time the detour is in effect; and that police officers or authorized flaggers 
shall, at the expense of the City of Kewanee be positioned at each end of the closed section and 
at other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through 
the detour; and that police officers, flaggers, and officials shall permit emergency vehicles in 
emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe for all concerned. 

 



Section 5: All debris shall be removed by the City prior to reopening the State Highway; and that such 
signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used as may be approved by the Illinois Department of 
Transportation. These items shall be provided by the City; and the closure and detour shall be 
marked according to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

 
Section 6: An occasional break shall be made in the procession so that traffic may pass through. In any 

event, adequate provisions will be made for traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to 
conditions noted above. 

 
Section 7: The City of Kewanee hereby agrees to assume all liabilities and pay all claims for any damage 

which shall be occasioned by the closing described above: and that the City shall provide a 
comprehensive general liability insurance policy or an additional insured endorsement in the 
amount of $ 1,000,000 per person and $2,000,000 aggregate which has the Illinois Department 
of Transportation and its officials, employees, and agents as insured and which protects them 
from all claims arising from the requested road closing. 

 
Section 8: The City Clerk shall forward a copy of this Resolution to IDOT to serve as a formal request for 

the permission sought in this Resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said 
permission. 

 
Section 9 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law. 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 12th day of June 2017. 
  
 
         ______________________________ 

Steve Looney, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  ________________________  
 Melinda Edwards, City Clerk 
 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
Council Member Deann Schweitzer     

Council Member Andrew Koehler      
Council Member Steve Faber      

 
 
 
 



 

Henry County Tourism Bureau  

 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

5:00-6:30 pm 

Broken Chimney Restaurant, 

Kewanee, IL 

Open to the public 

Light refreshments served 

 

 

   Please stop by to meet the bureau’s new  

   Executive Director, Cheryl Osborne,  

   and learn about tourism in Henry County. 

 
 

 
224 West Third Street, P.O. Box 634,   Kewanee, IL  61443 

www.visithenrycounty.com      309-761-8473 

http://www.visithenrycounty.com/

	Agenda20170612
	Monday, June 12, 2017

	CM memo
	COUNCIL MEETING 17-10
	EOM Sheets
	7-Day
	Weeds
	Misc

	ESDA May 2017
	Kewanee E.S.D.A.
	Severe Weather Spotters Network
	Keith Edwards, ESDA Director
	kedwards@cityofkewanee.net
	401 East Third Street, Kewanee, Illinois 61443
	Telephone (309)853-1911 Extension 267


	Fin & Admin April 2017
	Fin & Admin April 2017
	Police Department Rpt
	YMCA Request
	Map
	WarrantList20170612
	Tax Increment Financing Basics
	Business District Basics
	Staff Report -financial advisor
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResFinancialAdvisorServices20170612
	Staff Report -prevailing wage
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdPrevailingWage20170612
	HenryCountyPrevailingWageRatesJune2017
	Staff Report -Parade
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResHogDaysParade20170612
	Meet and Greet invite

